
Eleanor is digging into 
a nest from which 
hatchlings had just 
emerged. Sea turtles 
are protected under 
federal and state laws 
as their species are 
considered endangered  
or threatened. Only  
authorized profession-
als are allowed to han-
dle turtles or explore 
their nests as she did.
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As long-distance automobile travel became more prev-
alent in the 1930s, the age of the “snowbird” began. 
Juno Beach had the advantage of being the first place 
along the coast where US-1 (today’s Ocean Drive/A1A) 
ran parallel to the ocean. The area’s popularity grew as 
some tourists heading for Miami stayed here when they 
discovered its idyllic oceanfront cottages.
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By 1952, there were a dozen motels in Juno Beach lining Ocean Drive. 
Juno-by-the-Sea had direct beach access via a tunnel. The Tradewinds 
Motel is across the street on the left (today’s San Remo townhouses). 
The tourist season ran from January through March.
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1966. It conformed to the old zoning code limiting height to  
three stories, while buildings at the north end of town had no 
height limits. Greenbrier apartments were sold for $19,000-
$20,000 with a monthly maintenance of $26. They featured all 
electric kitchens, Formica counter tops, and sliding glass doors.
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New Juno Beach Pier

“Where Surf and Sun Meet Highway #1” Surf Cottages, the 
largest of the motels, was on Ocean Drive just south of today’s 
Donald Ross Road. In later years, they advertised Juno Beach 
with a rooftop sign that could be seen from aircraft flying along 
the coast.
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A 1984 Thanksgiving weekend storm 
hurled 20-foot waves at the structure and 
tore out its center.

The Fire Department burned down the 
two-story entrance building, which in-
cluded the bait and tackle shop, in a train-
ing exercise in 1985. The pier was razed 
the next year. 

In 1999, Palm Beach County built a new 
990-foot pier 1.6 miles to the north at 
Juno Beach Park.

Pelican Lake, a natural marsh, is  surrounded by 
higher land on the west, north, and east. Rain, 
runoff and seepage from these areas feed the 
lake throughout the year. Its only outlet is at the 
south end where it drains into Little Lake Worth 
and then into Lake Worth. Bessemer Properties 
cleared the marsh and created a large lake in the 
1940s. At that time, locals referred to it as Pelican 
Pond and it later became known as Pelican Lake.

A low weir (dam) was built at the south end of 
the lake to raise the water level. This photo is 
a “before” view, with deeper water seen only at 
the south end. Today’s Kagan Park was under 
water before the weir and culvert were con-
structed. Sand dredged from the lake bottom 
was used to build up the south end of the lake. 
This increased the lake’s maximum depth to 
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1946-1953
The Creation of Our Town

Construction of condominiums  
began along Ocean Drive in the 1970s. 

From 1959 to 1992, the United  
Methodist Church was on the site  
of the Juno Beach Town Center.
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This marketing brochure advertised: 
“Pick wild orchids, chase wild cats, 

watch alligators resting on the  
banks of the streams, catch  

turtles in the woods.”
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During World War II, German U-boats patrolled this 
coastline. Tankers were a favorite target as they 
transported oil via the swift, northbound Gulf Stream 
which runs close to the south Florida coast. A sub-
marine attacked this tanker south of Juno Beach, off 
Singer Island.

With these submarines offshore, people feared our 
sparsely inhabited coastline would be ideal for  
landing parties of German spies or saboteurs. 

“A beach patrol was formed, and men on horseback 
rode along the beach to warn of enemy activity...
Wounded American sailors, whose ships had been 
sunk by the submarines, occasionally were found on 
the beach and rushed to the hospital...by the town-
people.” —Nora Fitzgerald, a local resident

The U.S. Coast Guard leased the Surf Cottages motel 
during the war. Horseback beach patrols, which in-
cluded civilian volunteers, used the motel car sheds 
across the street as stables. 
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Juno 
Beach

Incorporated in 1953
Longitude: 26.88 North, Latitude: 80.06 West

Elevation: sea level to 40 feet above sea level, 
approximate northern boundary of the subtropics, 

close proximity to the Gulf Stream.

Trade Winds Beach Hotel

Surf Grill, across from Surf Cottages, featured “home-
 

in Florida.”
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The Dawn of Tourism

Surf Cottages Oceanfront 

Eleanor’s collection of shells and other  
curiosities became so large that she rented an 
apartment here on the second floor of 350  
Celestial Way just to exhibit them. Recognizing 
the importance of her Children’s Museum of  
Juno Beach, Palm Beach County gave it a new 
home in Loggerhead Park in 1983. It evolved  
into today’s Loggerhead Marinelife Center. 

The Turtle Lady

Loggerhead Marinelife Center

 
after World War II. It featured trendy late 1940s design 
elements: Venetian blinds, Scandinavian modern 
furniture, electric stovetops, pine wall paneling, and 
was “colorfully furnished.” (Above) Photo Courtesy 
Historical Society of Palm Beach County

As smaller family-run motels were being replaced by 
condominiums, national chains like Howard Johnson’s 
Restaurant and Motor Lodge moved in. These two build-
ings, on the corner of Donald Ross Road and US-1, later 
became the Juno Beach Fish House and the Holiday Inn.

Photos Courtesy Juno Beach Historical Society

1949, as the Fishing Pier was being constructed. 
Large areas were cleared of scrub brush to make 
the land appear more desirable to homebuyers. 

Bessemer Properties had an ambitious vision in 
1946 when they bought a tract of completely unde-
veloped scrubland and marsh between the Semi-
nole Golf Club and today’s Brigadoon condominium. 
There were several motels near this area, but this 
real estate development company saw an oppor-
tunity to create a new tourist mecca during the 
post-World War II boom. Their plan for this seaside 
playground featured an impressive fishing pier and 
lake, in addition to the beach. Juno Beach evolved 
and became an incorporated town in 1953.

The Trading Post restaurant was a social hub for the 
new community. In the 1950s, the Town Clerk used a 

 
(Today’s Town Hall Park on Ocean Drive.) 
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Mars Way
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By 1951,  
the lake was full,  

the Fishing Pier was 
 

private houses had  
been built along  
Juno Lane and  

Mars Way.

1950s

World War II Era

The Seminole Golf Club opened in 1930. The course 
was designed by the famous Scottish links designer 
Donald Ross (no relation to the World War II hero for 
whom Donald Ross Road was named). It is ranked 
among the world’s top courses. 

1890s

The 7½-mile Celestial Railroad, officially named the Jupiter  
and Lake Worth Railway (J. & L.W.), operated from 1889 to 1895. 

In those days, ocean-going ships had no navigable access to Lake 
Worth and its towns, such as West Palm Beach. The Celestial Railroad 
provided the essential link between Jupiter Inlet and the northern end of 
the lake, where people and goods could then transfer to lake steamers.

So essential was this connection that passengers paid a whopping 75 
cents (equivalent to more than 
$20 today) for this half-hour trip. 

The route of this three-foot, 
narrow-gauge line ran through 
what is now Ocean Drive in pres-
ent-day Juno Beach.

The train had two passenger 
coaches and three freight cars, 
which always pointed south. In 
order to head north, the train had 
to travel in reverse. 

Though the train only had two 
stations, Jupiter and Juno, its 
builders had planned two addi-
tional stations called Venus and 
Mars. Many Juno Beach street 
names carry out that celestial 
theme today.

CELESTIAL 
RAILROAD

Jupiter Inlet

Venus

Mars

JunoThe Celestial  
Railroad did not 

survive after Henry 
Flagler’s East Coast

Railway was  
completed and ran  

the entire length 
of  the state.

Oscar and Hulda Erikson, two recent Scandinavian im-
migrants, built a group of rough cottages and a con-
venience store called Juno Beach Camp on US-1 in 
1933. The Camp evolved into their oceanfront Juno 
Beach Cottages shown here (below) on US-1, which 
was only a shell road at the time.

This 1893 survey 
shows how the Jupi-
ter  and Lake Worth 
Railroad (the Celes-
tial Railroad) had to 
veer inland as it went 
south, to avoid the 
marsh that was later 
transformed into the 
Seminole Golf Club in 
the 1920s and Peli-
can Lake in the 1940s. 
Ocean Drive (A1A) fol-
lows the route of that 
railroad line.

Photo Courtesy Historical Society of Palm Beach County

Passengers 
paid a whopping

75 CENTS 
(equivilent to more 

than $20 today) 
for this 

half-hour trip.

Early Cottages

Juno Beach is one of the most densely nested sea turtle beaches in the world! The 
three primary sea turtle species that nest on our beaches are the loggerhead, green 
and leatherback. The nesting season is March through October. The Sargasso Sea 
is home to seaweed of the genus Sargassum, which floats en masse on the surface. 
Young sea turtles use currents such as the Gulf Stream to travel to the Sargasso 
Sea, where they use the sargassum as cover from predators until they are mature. 
Photo Courtesy University of Florida Explore Magazine

Early Juno Area
1961-1991

First  Town Hall

The Town 
leased the  

building for $1  
per year until it 
took ownership 

in 1974.

Juno 
Ball

Old Town Hall

 
Eleanor Fletcher 

came to Juno Beach as a 
real estate agent in the 1970s. 
She loved the beach and every 

beach walk became a journey of  
discovery. Fascinated by sea  

turtles, Eleanor learned everything 
she could about their behavior  

and was eager to share her  
knowledge and passion. She offered 

guided beach walks and  
even opened the Children’s  

Museum of  
Juno Beach.

1960s
The Condos

A Juno Beach Historical Society Project
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2000s

In 2017 Juno Beach residents voted to 

a park, in 2018, the site was transformed 
into Town Hall Park.
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Motel owners formed the Juno 
Beach Association in the  

1940s to publicize the town. 

Tourism really took off in the decade  
after World War II. Roads and vehicles 
had greatly improved, air-conditioning 
became more widespread, and many 
Veterans who had been stationed in 
Florida during the war wanted to return 
with their families. Visitors were  
attracted to the many oceanfront  
motels and the excellent pier-fishing 
and surf-fishing. The fish are abundant 
here because the Gulf Stream runs so 
close to the coast. Local motel owners 
publicized nearby “jungle cruises,” golf, 
jai alai, and greyhound racing.

Bessemer imagined that tourists would enjoy pedal boats on the new lake, 
which it created from a snake-infested marshland. The company even-
tually donated the lake and the surrounding land to the town. Bessemer 
advertised that there would be a Community Beach with a “residents only” 
beach club featuring oceanfront cabanas. 

Beach Club
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POPULATION
Census Data 

1953: 130
(1,500 Seasonal)
1960: 249
1970: 747 

1980: 1,142
1990: 2,172
2000: 3,262
2020: 3,463

Seminole Golf Club

Original Juno Beach Fishing Pier
The  550-foot steel pier, completed in 
1950 as part of the Bessemer Properties 
development, was the only pier between 
Cape Canaveral and Palm Beach. 

The pier was the main local attraction, 
popular with generations of residents, 
visitors, and anglers who caught snook, 
bluefish, pompano, and even sharks.  

“Fishing is  
exceptional here 
because the Gulf  

Stream runs so close  
to shore and the  
water deepens  

quickly.”

In the 1950s, Ocean Drive was still the main US-1 Highway. 
Due to fears that this highway would be swept away in a 
hurricane, the state decided in 1957 to reroute US-1 farther 
west. Ocean Drive was then renamed A1A. Motel owners 
erected this billboard to entice southbound motorists to 
turn off US-1.


